ATIONS CERD

Di str.
GENERAL

International Convention on
the Elimination

CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1345
of all Forms of 12 August 1999
Racial Discrimination

Oiginal: ENGLISH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Fifty-fifth session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 1345t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Tuesday, 10 August 1999, at 10 a.m

Chai r man: M. ABOUL- NASR
CONTENTS

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Fourteenth periodic report of Iragq (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 99-43738 (E)



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1345
page 2

CONTENTS (conti nued)

CONS| DERATI ON OF COPI ES OF PETI TI ONS, COPI ES OF REPORTS AND OTHER | NFORMATI ON
RELATI NG TO TRUST AND NON- SELF- GOVERNI NG TERRI TORI ES AND TO ALL OTHER

TERRI TORIES I N WHI CH GENERAL ASSEMBLY RESOLUTI ON 1514 (XV) APPLIES, IN
CONFORM TY W TH ARTI CLE 15 OF THE CONVENTI ON

ACTI ON BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY AT | TS FI FTY-TH RD SESSI ON
(a) ANNUAL REPORT SUBM TTED BY THE COWM TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON

OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON UNDER ARTI CLE 9, PARAGRAPH 2, OF
THE CONVENTI ON



CERD/ C/ SR. 1345
page 3

The neeting was called to order at 10.10 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item 4) (continued)

Fourteenth periodic report of Iraq (continued) (CERD C/320/Add. 3)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, the nenbers of the del egation of Irag
resuned their places at the Conmttee table.

2. M. YOUSSIE (Irag) underscored the inportance attached by Iraq to the
ongoi ng constructive dial ogue pursued on the basis of |egal rather than other
grounds, with a view to reaching a commn understandi ng of the best neans of
i mpl ementing the Convention.

3. Turning to the questions and comrents put forward by the Country
Rapporteur, he said that the reason the report included references to the
reports submtted by Iraq to other human rights bodies was that article 5 of

t he Convention |aid down the principle of non-discrimnation in the observance
of economic, social and cultural rights and civil and political rights, and
Irag, as a State party to the two Internati onal Covenants, had al ways reported
on non-discrimnation in the inplementation of those rights. Qher countries,
too, had referred in their reports to those submtted to the various treaty
bodies in an effort to avoid the repetition of information. Indeed, that
practi ce had been encouraged by neetings of the persons chairing human rights
treaty bodies.

4, The Iragi Governnent had consistently called for a national dialogue
with the various Kurdish factions so as to restore peace and security in the
Aut ononpus Regi on, while at the sanme tinme safeguardi ng human rights and
respecting the territorial integrity of the Iragi State. The nationa

di al ogue had progressed significantly in the past, with docunents ready for
signature, but those efforts had been thwarted because of interference by
certain foreign powers, in particular the United States of America.

5. In its concluding observations on the eleventh to thirteenth periodic
reports, the Conmittee had wel coned national |egislation devoted to the
protection of the cultural identity and | anguages of national mnorities in
Irag as a positive aspect. He further referred the Conmttee to paragraphs 80
to 92 of the fourteenth periodic report, which spelled out the cultural rights
enj oyed by the Turkoman and Syri ac-speaking comunities.

6. Par agraphs 45 to 50 and 93 and 94 of the fourteenth periodic report
expl ai ned the situation of the inhabitants of the Marshes.

7. All lraqgis enjoyed freedom of novenent and the freedomto choose their
pl ace of residence anywhere in the country.

8. Concerning the question of Kuwaitis reportedly living in Iraq,

article 1, paragraph 2, of the Convention stipulated that its provisions did
not apply to discrimnation between citizens and non-citizens. The matter
therefore did not fall within the conpetence of the Conmttee. The question
of Kuwaiti m ssing persons was covered by the rel evant Geneva Conventions and



CERD/ C/ SR. 1345
page 4

was the subject of work being done by a tripartite commttee conposed of
representatives of Iragq, Kuwait and Saudi Arabia and allied States, under the
auspices of the International Conmittee of the Red Cross. For humanitarian
reasons, lrag was keen to establish the whereabouts of all persons, including
Iragis in Kuwait, who had gone missing as a result of the armed conflict.

9. Regarding the situation in Iraq of Kurdish refugees from Turkey and Iran
and of Iranian Arab refugees, and the possibility for Iraqi refugees in Europe
to return to their country, he said that, although the question of refugees
did not fall within the conpetence of the Cormittee either, the del egation
could provide some information in the interests of constructive dial ogue.
There were a nunber of canps in lraq for Kurds and Iranian Arabs, and they
were periodically visited by the Ofice of the United Nations High
Commi ssi oner for Refugees (UNHCR). Iraq had done its utnost to assist those
refugees in returning home or to find host countries for resettlenent, as
attested in UNHCR docunents. As to Iraqgi refugees living in Europe, many of
them had been forced by economc difficulties brought on by the 10-year
econom ¢ enbargo to |eave their country. Nothing was stopping themfrom
returni ng.

10. Wth regard to all eged human rights violations in the northern

Aut ononous Regi on, he said that in the absence of control by a centra
authority, and as a result of the foreign mlitary intervention there, the

Aut ononpus Regi on had becone the scene of arned conflict between factions and
very serious violations of human rights. The Turkish mlitary intervention in
northern lraq had resulted in still nore tension and probl ens.

11. Replying to questions by other Committee nenbers, he said that the
periodic reports had already mentioned constitutional and |egislative texts
pertaining to the participation of Kurds in the central Government. The

Vi ce-President of the Republic and a nunber of government ministers were from
the northern Autononous Regi on, and the chairmen of the Legislative and
Executive Councils in the Autononobus Region took part in mnisterial cabinet
nmeetings. The Vice-President of the Iraqgi National Council, too, was a Kurd.
Many Kurdish citizens held hi gh-ranking posts as judges, anmbassadors and
directors in the public service

12. H s Government did not believe that articles 200, 203 and 204 of the
Penal Code were at variance with the Convention. It hoped, in a spirit of

di al ogue, that the Committee nmenbers could explain why some had contended t hat
those articles needed to be anended to bring themin line with article 4, and
per haps propose possible formulas for such anendnents.

13. The reason why property ownership in Baghdad was limted to those people
who figured as inhabitants of the city in the 1957 census and to their
children was that the Governnent wanted to maintain the denographi c bal ance
and to forestall a rural exodus to the capital. That neasure covered al
citizens, without any discrimnation based on race.

14. Par agraph 48 of the periodic report gave details of the distribution of
agricultural land in the Marshes region



CERD/ C/ SR. 1345
page 5

15. The provisions of the Convention had been published in the officia
gazette, the title of which was lragi Chronicles and which was w dely read by
adm nistrative and judicial authorities. An advisory comittee on human

ri ghts had published the Convention along with all human rights instrunents
ratified by lIraq, and other human rights organi zations, too, had publicized

t he Conventi on.

16. Educati on was conpul sory at the primary |evel, and was free of charge.
Because lIraq was a party to the Convention against Discrimnation in
Education, all schools had the same State curriculum regardless of the ethnic
origin or race of the pupils and students who attended them In addition
certain additional |anguage rights were ensured for Kurdish, Syriac and

Tur koman school s.

17. A question had been rai sed about the respective property rights of nen
and wonren. Iraqgi |egislation was based on Islam c | aw, and rmade provision for
t he i ndependent financial status of both married and single women. Wonmen were
thus entitled to establish their own businesses. He referred nmenbers to
Irag's first periodic report to the Comrittee on the Elimnation of

Di scrim nati on agai nst Wonren, to which his country reported regularly.

18. Any victimof racial discrimnation had the right to file a conplaint if
an act was committed that contravened articles 200, 203 or 204 of the Pena
Code, and the judge was obliged to receive it and refer it to a conpetent
court. The conpl ainant would then be able to pursue the matter and prosecute
the |l egal or natural person, public official or private individual who was in
breach of the law. [If a public official discrimnated agai nst a person, the
victimcould theoretically request conpensation fromthe State. In practice,
the Iraqgi del egati on was not aware of any such cases, but it would | ook into
the matter and keep the Comm ttee inforned.

19. The idea of deploying human rights observers in Iraq raised the question
of the credibility of the Special Rapporteur of the Comm ssion on Human Ri ghts
on the situation of human rights in Iraq, who had not been objective, had not
engaged in a dialogue with the Governnment and had departed from the guidelines
of the General Assenbly, according to which thematic and country specia
rapporteurs were obliged to conply with international |aw and to respect the
territorial integrity, national unity and political systemof the countries
they exam ned. The Special Rapporteur had instead chosen an approach based on
politicization and condemati on, and had nade proposals which by his own
account were w thout precedent in United Nations practice. The idea of
sendi ng human rights observers had been put to the Comm ssion on Human Ri ghts
as a rationalization measure, and had been rejected by a | arge nunmber of

St at es.

20. Some of the Committee nenbers had m sunderstood paragraph 107 of the
fourteenth periodic report, which was not intended to address the work and
practices of the Conmittee or other United Nations bodies, but those of
certain Western countries. 1In defiance of the Charter of the United Nations
whi ch prohibited interference in the affairs of sovereign States, those
countries had interfered in the internal affairs of Irag under the pretext of
defending mnority rights and human rights. The Iragi Governnment was in



CERD/ C/ SR. 1345
page 6

favour of carrying on a dialogue to pronote, reinforce and ensure human rights
in accordance with its treaty obligations.

21. Foreigners in Iraq enjoyed full econom c, social and cultural rights,
provi ded they resided legally in the country.

22. The Chairman had asked about the approximately 3 mllion Egyptians who

had |ived and worked in Iraq, contributing to the devel opnent of the country,
since the 1970s. Sone still resided there, but many had | eft since 1990 as a
result of the econom c enbargo and the aggression

23. The Speci al Rapporteur had indeed alleged that forced deportations had
occurred in the Kirkuk Governorate, and the Iraqi Governnment had al ready
refuted those allegations in a letter to the General Assenbly dated

14 Novenber 1997 (A/C.3/52/7) and in a previous letter sent to the

Ceneral Assenbly in 1994 (A/49/394). During the war between Iran and Iraq
some famlies had been resettled for their own safety fromthe border regions
near Kirkuk and Khanaqgin to areas further fromthe conbat zone, but they had
recei ved conpensation in accordance with the | aw.

24. Funds for Kurdistan were, under article 8 of the Autonony Act of 1974,
derived fromtwo sources: the national budget and the National Devel opnent

Pl an, and the Kurdistan regi onal budget, which included the revenue fromthe
taxes, fees, duties and fines indicated in the report (para. 59 (a)). On the
rel ated question of control over Kurdistan's mneral and water resources,

they, like all other natural resources, belonged to the people as a whole and
were adm nistered by the central Government of Iraq for the benefit of all the
people. Thus, the Autononmous Regi on had benefited proportionately fromthe
resources in its own territory.

25. He observed that the del egation had cone in a spirit of dial ogue, and
that it hoped the Conmittee had taken cogni zance of the two nmjor obstacles
Irag was facing, nanely, the continued enbargo, whose inpact was tantamunt to
genoci de, and the aggression through daily bonbardnments with depl eted uranium
weapons, whose dangerous consequences woul d extend to future generations as
wel | .

26. M. HUSSAIN (lraq), referring the Commttee to the annexes to the
report, said that for the period 1970-1990 the Autononobus Region had had a
budget of 22 billion dollars, or 9 per cent of the total nationa

appropriation for developnment. It had been used in part to fund maj or
petrochem cal and phosphate m ning projects in the region and was an equitable
sum for Kurdistan's devel opnent.

27. M. GARVALQV observed that, out of the five States in the region that
had a Kurdish mnority, Irag had been the only one to enact |egislation that
gave the Kurds - for whatever reason - the degree of autonomny that they
enjoyed. One of the four other States did not even recognize the Kurds as a
mnority, and lIragq had gone nuch further than the others in recognizing them

28. Al t hough the Convention had been incorporated into Iraqi |egislation and
could therefore be directly invoked in the courts, there appeared to be sone
m sconceptions in the Governnent's understanding of certain articles.



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1345
page 7

Par agraph 9 of the report, for instance, seened to interpret article 2 as
prohi biting discrimnation on grounds of social class; social class, however,
was not synonymous with ethnic group or religious group. Under article 2,
and al so under articles 1, 4, 5 and 7, Irag was required to prohibit

di scrimnation on specifically ethnic or racial grounds in its own

| egi sl ation, including the Penal Code. Simlarly, there was a di screpancy
bet ween what the report considered to be conpliance with article 4 of the
Convention and what the article itself said, specifically article 4 (a): the
propagati on of “feelings of hatred anobng sections of the people” (report,
para. 15) could just as easily be based on class as on race or ethnicity, and
its prohibition did not fulfil the requirements of the Convention.

29. M. WO FRUM underscoring the del egation's proper understandi ng of the
prohibition of racial discrimnation in terms of jus cogens, said that he
agreed with M. Garvalov that the | egal regime governing the Kurds in Iran was
far superior to that in neighbouring States, and was in fact an excell ent
regi me per se.

30. Al t hough he understood the thinking behind the acquisition of rea
estate by the central Governnent, sonme of his doubts had not been dispelled.

31. In addition to the information provided on the government posts held by
Kurds and other mnorities in the executive branch, he would at a later tine
appreci ate details on their nunbers in the police force, the judiciary and the
| egi slature. He also would |like to know whet her the Governnent, which ensured
that the Kurds could be educated in their own | anguage, had taken care to
ensure that they properly |earned the | anguage of the nation as well. No
mnority had a right to exclude itself fromthe Iife of the country as a
whol e, thus marginalizing itself.

32. Ms. SADIQ ALI observed that Iraq, once cited by the United Nations
Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization (UNESCO for its literacy
canpai gns and once a country that had provided free education up to the

hi ghest |evels, was, under the inpact of the sanctions, suffering froma |ack
of textbooks and materials. The strain on educational facilities mght soon
begin to affect enrolment as well. Iraqgi youth had been left behind - by a
decade - in the field of science and technology. The Comrittee should rmake a
statement taking serious note of that deplorable situation, under article 7 of
t he Conventi on.

33. M. de GOUTTES, expressing appreciation for the interesting information
provi ded, especially on the | aws governing ethnic groups, said that he would
still like to know how the Governnent was planning to publicize the
concl usi ons and reconmmendati ons of the Committee in connection with the
current and future reports of Iraq; and what neasures it had taken or would
take to develop training in human rights, tolerance and inter-ethnic

under standi ng for the police and security forces and for the judiciary, as
recommended in the Conmittee' s general recomendati on on the matter

34. M. DIACONU (Country Rapporteur) said that he believed the Conmittee had
been given a good picture of the prevailing situation. He w shed to nake the
poi nt, however, that if the Cormittee itself dealt with questions that cane
within the jurisdiction of other treaty bodies, it was not trying to extend



CERD/ C/ SR. 1345
page 8

its own conpetence but to see those issues fromits own specific angle of
racial discrimnation; and that it had a right to do so. He also wished to
explain that he did not consider that Iraq's Penal Code was contrary to
article 4 of the Convention but sinmply that it did not go far enough. That
was the case in nost other countries as well, but the Committee had to insist
on full conpliance. It should be clear to any jurist, for instance, that
incitement to racial hatred was nmuch broader than incitenment to interconmmunal
bigotry. He |ooked forward to receiving fuller information in the next report
and to a continued regul ar dial ogue between Iraq and the Conmittee.

35. M. YOUSSIE (Iragq) said that the Penal Code articles cited, even if
perhaps not as broad as article 4 of the Convention, certainly covered many of
the sane points. |Interconmunal conflict, for instance, often springing from
raci al tensions, was an obstacle to national unity that could easily lead to
the kind of civil wars that other countries were experiencing.

36. Under the Autonony Act, education in Kurdistan was provided to Kurds and
Arabs in their own | anguage, and the same applied to mnorities living in
other regions. All, however, also |earned the national |anguage. Exceptiona

circunstances had obliged Irag to suspend its literacy canpai gns, but the

del egati on appreciated Ms. Sadiq Ali's recognition of the usual quality of
education in Irag and hoped that the Committee would act on her proposal. The
Gover nment al ready provided courses in human rights for |aw enforcenment
officers, and the Conmittee's concludi ng observations on the report of Iraq
woul d be published in the press and be brought to the attention of the
conpetent officials.

37. M. HUSSAIN (lraq) said that Iraq recogni zed the rights of all socia
groups, whether Kurds, Turkomans, Chal deans, Armenians or any others, and al so
of all religious denom nations. Al were free to worship as they w shed and

all mnorities, however small, could exercise their rights. He agreed fully
with M. Wl frum about the teaching of the main national |anguage to
mnorities. It should be noted, however, that Kurdish was al so taught in high

school s throughout the country. The grave deterioration of education since
the embargo was a sad fact, and he urged the Commttee to nake a statenment on

it. Iraqg continued to do everything possible to pronmote education, which was
still free.
38. Iragi | aw prohibited the propagation of feelings of hatred anong

sections of the people because such hatred was the first step towards outright
di scrimnation and even armed conflict, and had to be tackled at the earliest
stage. The Governnent wanted to preserve the unity and harnony of the npsaic
of ethnic groups and religious conmunities that was Irag and therefore al so
out | awed i ntercomunal bigotry.

39. Regardi ng the respective mandates of the Comrittee and the other human
rights treaty bodies, there had of course to be a certain | eeway for the
Conmittee to address matters that also fell within the purview of other
commttees. There were tines, however, when it could be said that certain
subjects were primarily the concern of the other comm ttees and that nenbers
of the Conmittee should not try to twist the interpretation of the Convention
in senses that were beyond its scope.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1345
page 9

40. The CHAI RMAN said that he believed that, by continuing their dial ogue,
the Conmittee would be able to convince the delegation that it was not going
beyond its mandate if it |ooked for discrimnation on racial grounds in any
area what soever, such as the treatnment of refugees, children or prisoners,
equality between men and wonen, or any other. M. Diaconu had expressed the
Committee's point of view, which was a matter of great inportance to all its
menbers. The Committee in turn would, of course, bear in mnd the two ngjor
difficulties in lragq, the aggression and the enbargo. The Committee had

al ways expressed itself forcefully on such issues and i ndeed had been one of
the first to do so

41. M. YOUSSIF (Iraq) said that his del egati on was confident of the

Conmittee's concern, at all tines, to fulfil its mandate objectively, and
recogni zed the Conmittee's primary role in its field. It was gratified, too,
that the | anguage of dial ogue had prevailed. It hoped that the annexes to its

report could appear as an addendum and that a version in Arabic, already
avail abl e, woul d al so be circul at ed.

42. The CHAIRMAN invited the Iragi delegation to contact the secretari at
about the distribution of the text in Arabic. He noted that, although Arabic
had not al ways been an official |anguage of the United Nations, Iraq had been
able to submit its eleventh, twelfth and thirteenth periodic reports in that

| anguage. He reiterated the Committee's appreciation of the Iraq

del egation's attendance and col | aborati on

43. The nenbers of the delegation of lragi wthdrew

CONSI DERATI ON OF COPI ES OF PETI TI ONS, COPI ES OF REPORTS AND OTHER | NFORMATI ON
RELATI NG TO TRUST AND NON- SELF- GOVERNI NG TERRI TORI ES AND TO ALL OTHER

TERRI TORI ES TO WHI CH GENERAL ASSEMBLY RESOLUTI ON 1514 (XV) APPLIES, IN
CONFORM TY W TH ARTI CLE 15 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item 8) (CERD/ C/ 368;
CERD/ C/ 55/ M sc. 28)

44, The CHAIRMAN drew the Committee's attention to the note by the
Secretary-Ceneral (CERD/ C/ 368) concerning article 15 of the Convention, and to
t he wor ki ng paper (CERD/ C/ 55/M sc.28) prepared by M. van Boven, who had again
been appointed to exam ne rel evant docunents made available to the Conmittee.

45, M. van BOVEN, referring to the working paper (CERD/ C/55/M sc.28), said
that no copi es had been received of petitions directly related to the
principles and objectives of the Convention pursuant to article 15,

paragraph 2 (a). |In that connection, he recalled the Commttee's opinions and
recommendati ons, set out in paragraph 493 of its report to the

Ceneral Assenbly at its fifty-third session (A/53/18), including its request
to the Secretary-Ceneral to provide it with copies of petitions and any ot her
informati on relevant to the objectives of the Convention and available to him
regarding the Territories nmentioned in article 15, paragraph 2 (a), and
inviting the Special Conmittee of 24, when devising its future work, to give
nmore systematic attention, in particular, to matters directly related to the
principles and objectives of the Convention. |In addition, States parties

adm ni stering Non-Sel f-Governing Territories or otherw se exercising
jurisdiction over Territories were requested to include or continue to
include, in their reports to be submtted pursuant to article 9, paragraph 1,




CERD/ C/ SR. 1345
page 10

of the Convention, relevant information about the inplenmentation of the
Convention in all Territories under their jurisdiction. He suggested that the
Conmittee should reiterate those opinions and recommendati ons, with slight

nmodi fication in the light of the reply by the Secretary of the Specia
Conmittee relating to petitions pursuant to article 15, paragraph 2 (a), of

t he Conventi on.

46. No copies of petitions relating to article 15, paragraph 2 (a) had been
received. Wth regard to article 15, paragraph 2 (b), he drew attention to
par agraph 2 of the working paper, in particular to the material relating to
East Tinor, New Cal edonia and Western Sahara. Mst of the material was out of
date because of events such as the planned referendum about the future status
of East Tinor, a foreseen referendumfor self-determ nation of the people of
Western Sahara and, of imediate interest to the Cormittee, the Nouméa Accord,
signed on 5 May 1998, on the future status of New Cal edonia, which purported
to give full recognition of the Kanak identity, regardi ng which an extensive
docunent on the Kanak identity was attached to the Accord - in his view a

wel conme inclusion. That event had been the major devel opnent, during the past
year, relating to Territories to which General Assenbly resolution 1514 (XV)
appl i ed.

47. As coul d be seen from paragraph 3 of the working paper, concerning
relations with the Special Commttee of 24, the Secretary of the latter body
had stated that there had been no petitions relating to article 15,

paragraph 2 (a) of the Convention. No comunication had been received about
material relating to article 15, paragraph 2 (b), probably because the Specia
Committee's 1998 session had al ready concl uded before the Comrttee had drawn
up its opinions and recommendations in August 1998.

48. The CHAI RMAN t hanked M. van Boven, on behalf of the Commttee, for the
wor ki ng paper and further information provided. He found it disquieting for
the Conmittee to be told that no petitions or other nmaterial relating to
article 15 of the Convention had been received, since he was aware, from what
he had | earned while attendi ng nmeetings of persons chairing the human rights
treaty bodies, that thousands of petitions remained w thout attention because
of shortage of personnel and funds. He was concerned, too, about the | ack of
material from non-governmental organizations (NG3s) relating to

Non- Sel f- Governing Territories; he would wel come such material, addressed
either to hinmself or to M. van Boven.

49. He took it that the Commttee wished to invite M. van Boven to draft a
bri ef document reiterating the Commttee's opinions and recomendati ons,
including a particular appeal for any relevant information relating to

Non- Sel f - Governing Territories, even if the subject-matter m ght seem
appropriately covered by article 9 of the Convention

50. It was so deci ded.




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1345
page 11

ACTI ON BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY AT I TS FIFTY-TH RD SESSI ON (agenda item 6)

(a) ANNUAL REPORT SUBM TTED BY THE COVMM TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF
RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON UNDER ARTI CLE 9, PARAGRAPH 2, OF THE
CONVENTI ON

51. M. BANTON briefly reviewed, at the invitation of the Chairman, the
proceedi ngs of the Third Commttee of the General Assenbly relating to the
annual report submitted by the Commttee. Regrettably, the debate had been
conmbi ned with discussion of the reports of other bodies, as in previous
sessions, and with preparations for the forthcom ng Wrld Conference agai nst
Raci sm Racial Discrimnation, Xenophobia and Rel ated Intolerance. In
addition, certain delegations had taken up tinme in raising political issues
such as Kashmr, Israel, Eritrea and Ethiopia. The resolutions adopted by the
CGeneral Assenbly had focused, as in the past, on two nain causes of racia

di scrimnation: colonialismand the dissenination of ideas of racia
superiority, both condemmed in the preanble to the Convention. Further

causes, however, had been noted in resolution 53/132 adopted relating to the
Third Decade to Conbat Raci sm and Racial Discrimnation; they included

gl obal i zati on, inequitable distribution of wealth, marginalization and socia
exclusion. And nmention had been nmade for the first tine, in resolution 53/133
on neasures to combat contenporary forms of racism racial discrimnation
xenophobi a and rel ated intol erance, of racist and xenophobic ideas in
political circles.

52. During the debates, M. Val encia Rodriguez had effectively put forward
the Committee's views, and had expressed regret that the Cormittee's report
had been circulated to the participants very late. One significant
contribution to the discussions had cone fromthe representative of the
Denmocrati c Republic of the Congo; a text had been made avail able and coul d
per haps be di scussed when the Committee cane to consider that country's
periodic report later in the current session

53. M. VALENCI A RODRI GUEZ said that, at the Cormittee's request, he had
taken part in the Third Commttee's debate on raci smand racial discrimnation
at the previous session of the CGeneral Assenbly, in his capacity as
representative of Ecuador. He had outlined the Commttee's main concerns, as
expressed in its report (A/53/18), and particularly its decisions 7 (53)

and 8 (53) on the need to extend one of its sessions and to hold its wi nter
session in New York.

54, Resolutions in the Third Commttee were now adopted by consensus, a
prerequi site for which were informal discussions and negotiations in the
various groups. He had, accordingly, taken an active part in the discussion
relating to CERD s work by the Group of 77 and China, the first of the groups
to consider the draft resolution. The first draft of the resolution had
merely taken note of the Commttee's decisions 7 (53) and 8 (53).

Partici pants had not been in favour of according the Conmttee a | onger
session, arguing that it was up to date with its own work, nor of allowing it
to nmeet in New York, since the Ofice of the United Nations Hi gh Comm ssi oner
for Human Rights was in Geneva. His delegation had considered submtting an
anmendnent to the effect that the General Assenbly endorsed the two deci sions,
but, given the strong opposition, that would certainly have pronpted a vote



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1345
page 12

and sharply divided the Third Conmittee. A conprom se had been suggest ed,
whereby the Comm ttee's sumer session woul d be extended by five working days
in 1999 and 2000 and the General Assenbly would reconsider the | ength of
sessions and the possible holding of a session in New York at its fifty-fifth
Session in 2000. After further consultations, it had emerged that no further
concessions coul d be made and Ecuador had accordingly withdrawn its
sponsorship of the draft resolution. The draft resolution was eventually
adopted as General Assenbly resolution A/53/131 entitled “Internationa
Convention on the Elimnation of Al Forms of Racial Discrimnation”

with 50 sponsors, anong them Argentina, Bulgaria, Cyprus, France, GCernany,

Net her| ands, Paki stan, Romani a, Sweden and the United Kingdom Egypt and

Al geria had spoken in explanation of vote before the voting, and Turkey, the
United States of Anerica and Ecuador after the voting.

55. He had been particularly anxious to anmend the original draft of
operative paragraphs 2, 3, 4 and 6, of which the final version was before the
Committee. The original version of operative paragraph 5 had comrended the
Committee on its constant efforts for the effective inplementation of

i nternational human rights instruments by neans of continual inmprovenents in
its working methods, especially its procedure for reviewi ng the inplenentation
of the Convention in those States whose reports are excessi bly overdue.

Sl oveni a, on behalf of the sponsors, had revised the text and a vote had in
fact been taken, showing that there was still opposition. The adopted version
read: “Commends the Committee on its continuing efforts to contribute to the
effective inplenentation of the Convention and notes its continuing efforts to
i nprove its working nmethods”. Paragraphs 18 and 20 had al so been changed as a
result of the efforts made to inmprove the text.

56. The CHAI RMAN t hanked M. Banton and M. Val encia Rodriguez for their
expl anati ons and suggested that the Commttee should return to the issue at a
| ater meeting.

The neeting rose at 1.05 p.m




